MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF
BRONXVILLE HELD ON DECEMBER 12, 2005 AT THE BRONXVILLE LIBRARY, 201 PONDFIELD
ROAD, BRONXVILLE, N.Y.

K ok ok ok ok ok
PRESENT: Mary C. Marvin Mayor

Frank V. Sica
Glenn D. Bellitto
Robert S. Underhill

Anne W. Poorman Trustees
ALSO PRESENT: Ned W. Branthover Village Counsel
Harold Porr 11T Village Administrator
Rocco Circosta Superintendent of Public Works
Brian M. Downey Chief of Police
Vincent Pici, P.E. Superintendent of Buildings
Robert J. Fels Village Treasurer
William J. Murphy Parking Commissioner
Gerry lagallo Village Assessor
* ok ok ok k%

Mayor Marvin opened the meeting on a motion by Trustee Underhill, seconded by
Trustee Bellitto and approved unanimously at 7:07 p.m.

WORK SESSION

(Present were Mayor and Trustees, Village Counsel, Village Administrator and Village
Assessor.)

Renee Atayan, Bronxville representative on the Eastchester Volunteer Ambulance
Corps (EVAC) board, was present and briefed the Board on various EVAC matters.

Village Administrator Porr reviewed Board meeting agenda.
Discussion followed on the topic of membership on the Bronxville Board of
Assessment Review. An opinion on the topic (prepared by the Edward G. Michaelian

Municipal Law Resource Center of Pace University) was distributed and reviewed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 7:28 p.m., on motion by Trustee Bellitto, seconded by Trustee Poorman, and



December 12, 2005
Page 2

approved unanimously, the Board went into executive session to discuss personnel, contract
negotiation and litigation.

At 8:02 p.m., on motion by Trustee Sica, seconded by Trustee Underhill, and approved
unanimously, the Board ended executive session and re-entered public session.

Mayor Marvin opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.

The regular meeting was recessed at 8:10 p.m. to go to a public hearing, and reopened at
8:15 p.m.

CODE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION #3 - 2005

On motion of Trustee Bellitto, seconded by Trustee Poorman, and unanimously carried,
the following resolution was adopted:

BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Trustees adopts the following Amendment to the Code
of the Village of Bronxville, Chapter 290, Vehicles and Traffic, Section 290-28:

Section 290.28. Parking prohibited in designated locations.
Amend subsection A.(14) Midland Avenue:

(a)  On the north side, from the east curbline of Parkway Road, easterly therefrom, to the
driveway for #11 Midland Avenue.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this regulation shall become effective immediately
upon adoption by the Board of Trustees.

MAYOR'S REPORT

Mayor Marvin began her report by talking about the main issue in the Village, tax equity
review. She said we continue moving on the impact study and we have a projected approximate
finishing date of the 3" week of January. As the time gets closer we will have a more exact date.
Upon receipt of the impact study, it will be released to the public and a public meeting will be
scheduled for its discussion as expeditiously as possible.

The mayor said she still feels it is very important that we wait for this study before moving
forward because residents deserve to know in general terms the economic impact of the
revaluation option on their home for their own planning purposes. In fact, no community has
done a revaluation without offering its residents an impact study. Our goal is to be as fair,
methodical, open and as timely as possible as we continue this process.

To this end, our legal consultant, David Wilkes, has developed a draft RFP or request for
professional services which we are currently reviewing, and we have sent out an initial letter to



December 12, 2005
Page 3

approximately 12 companies asking for their qualifications and client list in an effort to narrow the
list. We have also passed along Mrs. Harding’s consultant’s sample RFP to Mr. Wilkes to ensure
we have covered all the issues.

Mayor Marvin reported that she and Mr. Porr also reached out to the Greenwich
Connecticut assessor, as Connecticut by law must reassess regularly, to discuss procedures and
companies they have employed. They are meeting with him early in the New Year.

The mayor said Mr. lagallo is currently visiting properties in order to finalize the 2006 tax
roll. She thanked the residents who made improvements to their homes and are being assessed for
them this year for their understanding. She said she knows it is difficult when in the past others
have not been reassessed, but to continue to do nothing only increases the inequities, and we
simply have to right the ship here, and move forward with the proper methods of assessment.

In the interest of increasing our communication with residents, Mayor Marvin said
Mr. lagallo will be at the Library in the small downstairs conference room adjacent to the Yeager
Room on Saturday, December 17, beginning at 10:00 a.m. to answer people’s questions about
taxes in general or their property in particular. She asked that residents just call Village Hall to
schedule an appointment. The appointment option allows people private time with Mr. Tagallo
and also gives him an opportunity to prepare by bringing the appropriate records to the meeting,
should they want to discuss their particular property. Should we have more requests than open
slots, she will ask Mr. Tagallo to schedule another session.

Mayor Marvin reported that the three part-time gentlemen we have hired to help with
assessments have been busy. One gentleman is finishing up on the Eckert data, the other
gentleman is working on the 2006 tax roll, and the third gentleman is helping us on challenging
this year’s residential ratio.

Mayor Marvin said she spent a lot of time talking to assessors around the county. She said
that in these months we have been studying the tax issue and digesting the results of our studies,
and she believes the time has been well spent in not only getting to the root of the inequities in a
comprehensive way but also giving citizens time to absorb the data, bring to the fore any alternate
solutions to pursue and letting it all sink in so we can all formulate more than reflex responses.
The mayor said, from her perspective, no solution, save for revaluation has percolated a realistic
answer. She was hoping for a solution that would be less costly, less time consuming and less
disruptive, such as adopting the assessment numbers from the Eastchester Town Roll.
Unfortunately, our dispersion ratio from the mean is 19% while the town’s is 43% on the
Bronxville portion of the roll which equates to greater inequity than we currently have and thus
no solution.

Mayor Marvin said that if we pursued targeting new construction that went unassessed in
the past ten years, which is a dubious strategy from a legal standpoint, all improvements would be
subject to a complicated depreciation formula so subjective it would spawn a great deal of
litigation — and most importantly, even if it were doable, it wouldn’t address the other issues of



December 12, 2005
Page 4

under-assessed neighborhoods, over-assessed smaller homes and homes over-assessed because
they were new in the 1960's and considered the most desirable at the time of the last revaluation.

Mayor Marvin said the solution of revaluation, if done carefully and correctly, will produce
greater equity by eliminating unfair assessments, and distributing the tax burden fairly within the
Village. It will also provide defensible data and assessments that will in time hopefully reduce the
number of assessment complaints and ultimately increase taxpayers’ understanding and confidence
in the taxing system. What a reassessment will not be — is a quick, inexpensive and painless repair
of the tax roll. It will not generate any additional revenue or correct external inequities, meaning
in our case, any inequities in the Town/County portion of our taxes. It will not prevent tax shifts
between the residential and commercial classes, though adoption of the Homestead Provision can
slow the shifting of burdens, and revaluation will not compensate the taxpayers for prior
inequities. She said we have a great deal of work ahead of us, as a Board, as we work to achieve
greater equity in our tax roll.

Mayor Marvin reported on the Village Hall renovation project. She said, to say the last
tew weeks have been hectic at Village Hall is truly an understatement. The well digging for the
geothermal heating and cooling system has been completed on time. Village staff officially moved
out of Village Hall on Thursday and Friday, and we opened for business in our trailers just today.

The mayor said we moved out in the nick of time — our ancient furnace is on its last legs
resulting in our staff working without heat for several days, and being driven from the building by
fumes. This project is very much about deferred maintenance. We initially tried to segment
repairs but given the nature of the types required — asbestos and lead removal and a new roof, we
would have to vacate the building for each of them, it made economic sense to do them as a
project. The building looks quite beautiful from the outside but it needs repair and modernization
desperately. We will also finally be handicapped accessible and reclaim 5,000 sq. ft. of currently
unusable space for staffing needs. It has been disruptive, but unfortunately necessary, but come
project’s end, our staff will have a safe and efficient place to work. The mayor said it has been a
time of upheaval and transition for the staff but they have responded with enthusiasm and energy,
and she thanked them all for their dedication and incredible efforts for our Village.

Reporting on other activities since the November meeting, Mayor Marvin said we
published our newsletter and our goal is to produce it quarterly so you will see another one in late
February.

The mayor said we are very pleased with our new system of public work sessions prior to
our monthly meetings, and invite anyone to attend. They will be a permanent part of our schedule
going forward.

Mayor Marvin reported that the Police have opted for mediation so we will join them
there. She said we very much would like to see an agreement with our officers. It would help all

of us to have a settled contract and save both sides time and large legal fees.

The mayor said we are currently in labor negotiations with the DPW represented by the



December 12, 2005
Page 5

Teamsters Union. We have had productive initial conversations.

Mayor Marvin reported that a preliminary draft of the Michaelian Institute Study was
received today. They were asked to comment on the advisability of delegating the assessment
review function to an independent nonpartisan board, rather than the Board of Trustees. She said
the Board will discuss this option and make an announcement in January.

Mayor Marvin thanked the Board of Fire Commissioners for lowering our rent for use of
the Bronxville Fire Station during the renovation of Village Hall given the Village is only using it
for storage.

Mayor Marvin thanked the Town Report and the Bronxville Bulletin for running her
weekly column which is an attempt to share more information and let residents know what we are
working on here at Village Hall.

She also thanked the Village of Tuckahoe, its government and employees, who have gone
above and beyond to help us with our court which is now in Tuckahoe Village Hall until our
renovation is over.

Mayor Marvin extended thanks to Houlihan Lawrence Real Estate for lighting three trees
in the Village. They are responsible for the two lit trees by the train station and the one in
Bicentennial Park. She said the Village looks beautiful this year — the combination of new lights
and decorations are particularly extraordinary this year.

As the year comes to a close, Mayor Marvin said she wanted to thank all the citizens for
the honor of being their Mayor. She said it has been a fascinating journey so far. She said it is a
privilege to work for the fine people she is lucky enough to meet every day, they have enhanced
her life and she is truly grateful.

TRUSTEE REPORTS

Trustee Sica reported that he asked the Village administration to embark on an actuarial
study of our post retirement medical benefits. He said we need to get a good handle on this
obligation because it could be quite substantial. He noted that currently we are on a pay-as-you-
go basis for retiree medical benefits, and it’s important to find out what it is we have obligated
future taxpayers to pay.

Trustee Poorman reported that the Chamber of Commerce merchants have organized a
Toys for Tots drive in conjunction with the Marine Corps Reserve and they are currently
collecting toys for children. She said we have also designed and installed nine new signs for
parking in the business district. She thanked Chief Downey and Rocco Circosta for their help.

Trustee Poorman reported that the Bronxville Library has scheduled two additional author
visits in conjunction with their centennial celebration in 2006.



December 12, 2005
Page 6

Trustee Bellitto reported on parking and traffic issues. He said there has been a foot
patrolman working the business district areas on Saturdays. He said he checking with counsel Jim
Staudt on allowing more time for the same amount of money at handicapped spaces. Trustee
Bellitto said that Trustee Poorman has been very helpful concerning the parking initiatives.

Reporting as Trustee liaison to the assessment function, Trustee Bellitto said we are at a
very critical time in the decision making process. He said we would need to have a Trustee vote
on revaluation early in the new year in order to have a reassessment completed in time for the
2007 tax year. He said, as Mayor Marvin mentioned, we are close to giving Dr. Eckert the
information he needs for the impact study. It will take him 3-4 weeks to complete the impact
study. Trustee Bellitto said he would like to see a Village meeting on the impact study. If all
those things happen, he said the Trustees could vote on it in February or at the regularly
scheduled March Trustee meeting.

Trustee Bellitto said he thought it was wonderful that Mr. Porr sent out letters to appraisal
companies. He said the draft RFP would be ready very soon.

Trustee Bellitto spoke for a few minutes about hiring Gerry lagallo as Village Assessor.
He said he had taken part in many of the conversations that led up to the hiring of our Village
Assessor. He said we hired Mr. Tagallo after conducting a number of interviews and his
experience in the field was compelling among a terrific group of applicants.

Trustee Bellitto also spoke about David Wilkes and said he has given what he considers to
be on-target ideas. He said Mayor Marvin, Harold Porr and he went to David Wilkes office to
discuss his report.

Trustee Bellitto said that to achieve the goal to get Dr. Eckert the data he needed for his
impact study and to appraise building improvements completed in 2005, Gerry lagallo
recommended that we hire three part time assistants for him, people who also work for him in the
Greenburgh town office. He said he thought it was important for Gerry to hit the ground running
so that we would have a better chance of meeting our tax deadlines. Trustee Bellitto said he
wants a tax roll in Bronxville that is fair and he wants it as soon as possible. He said the
completion of this work will enable us to vote on reassessment so that there is a good chance for
new tax rates to take effect for the 2007 tax year.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor Marvin pointed out one minor correction in the spelling of a name in the minutes of
the Regular Meeting of November 14™.

On motion of Trustee Bellitto, seconded by Trustee Underhill, the Board approved the
minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 14, 2005, as amended, and the Public Hearing of
November 14, 2005, as drafted.



December 12, 2005
Page 7

DEPARTMENT REPORTS

Department reports were presented by Chief of Police Downey, Superintendent of
Buildings Pici, Superintendent of Public Works Circosta, Village Treasurer Fels, Parking
Commissioner Murphy, Village Assessor Gerry lagallo, and Village Administrator Porr.

Mayor Marvin congratulated Chief Downey as the new President of the Westchester
County Chief’s Association and also as a member of District Attorney Janet DiFiore’s team.

RESOLUTION — Approval of 2005 Small Claims Assessments

On motion of Trustee Underhill, seconded by Trustee Sica, and unanimously carried, the
following resolution was adopted

BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Trustees approves the negotiated settlements of various
2005 Small Claims SCAR settlements as outlined in the attached document.

Mayor Marvin asked Village Assessor lagallo to briefly explain about these settlements.

Mr. lagallo said he spoke to school officials informing them what the impact would be. He
explained that if anybody files a grievance and they do not receive a reduction in their assessment
they can file a small claim before the judge. Each one of these cases went that route. He said that
fortunately we were able to resolve them without litigation. He said the settlements are fair and
equitable for the Village

RESOLUTION — Authorizing Contract with Patrick McEvily and Associates, Inc.

On motion of Trustee Bellitto, seconded by Trustee Underhill, and unanimously carried,
the following resolution was adopted

BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Trustees authorizes the mayor to sign a contract with
Patrick McEvily and Associates, Inc. to perform an external evaluation of the condition of
selected Bronxville residential properties in connection with the impact study being
performed by Dr. Joseph Eckert.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Dorothy Brennan thanked Rocco Circosta for giving her the plaque that was made out for
the Betty Parker Cabin that was built in 1929. She said she will put it on a wall in the cabin in a
prominent place.

Mrs. Brennan said there are seven holidays that fall on a Monday, and she is one of the
residents who don’t get their trash picked up on those days.



December 12, 2005
Page 8

Mrs. Brennan spoke about former village assessor Robert Balog and said she tried to find
him. She said she didn’t find him in Greenburgh. She thought he was working there with our
current assessor, Gerry lagallo. Mrs. Brennan spoke about the assessment issue and said we have
to go to full evaluation. She said we have to start with a whole clean sweep, and that Mr. Tagallo
would have to go. Mrs. Brennan said she feels that at this point and time the only answer is
reassessment and revaluation. There was discussion about revaluation and the desirability of
conducting an impact study. Mrs. Brennan said that an impact study at this point and time to her
doesn’t make any sense.

Mayor Marvin said the Board has to represent all the citizens and there are many people
who would like to know how a reassessment would affect them. She said there are a number of
people who are not rich and who will be affected greatly. People have a right to see the economic
impact of this. She said we have made incredible strides in the last six months and we have been
completely up front on what the issues are. Members of the Board have spent a great deal of time
on the assessment issue and we have tried to fix it.

Gerry lagallo said he wanted to clear up some misconceptions. He said Bob Balog does
not work for him. Mr. Balog works for the Town of Greenburgh periodically and was recently
hired to work for the town attorney.

Betsy Harding asked Mr. lagallo if he will be sending out letters notifying people of their
assessment change in January or February. Mr. lagallo said the assessment roll is filed in February
and letters will go out in February. If residents receive a letter and they disagree with the
assessment they can file a grievance. He said the tentative assessment roll can be inspected from
February 1* through the third Tuesday in February. Mrs. Harding said that was a very short
period of time. Mr. lagallo said that’s all that the law provides.

Mrs. Harding asked if the three part time employees are doing their work at Village Hall or
are they taking their work away. Mr. Iagallo said the part time employees are doing a mixture of
those things. Some are taking work and doing it at home, and some come in to Village Hall to do
the work. Mrs. Harding asked if any of the property cards are being taken out of Village Hall.
Mr. Tagallo said one of the part time employees takes the property cards out of Village Hall under
his control.

Mrs. Harding said Mr. Balog did a revaluation study a few years ago. She said if there’s a
delay in Dr. Eckert’s study in the meantime she thinks the Board should release Bob Balog’s
study.

Mayor Marvin said the Eckert study will be done timely, and said we hired an expert. She
said she is convinced that the study results we will get from Dr. Eckert will be results that we can
give to the community. She said she wants to release something that is comprehensive and
complete.

Trustee Sica said that the Balog study was never finished and it was not complete.



December 12, 2005
Page 9

Megan McKinley said she did see the Balog study and it was complete. She said she
thought it would be helpful to release the study and see what it says.

Mayor Marvin said that as a Trustee she understood that the Balog study was a draft. She
said that as Mayor she wants to release something that she had involvement with and she feels
comfortable releasing Dr. Eckert’s study.

Ms. McKinley said that those people who are over-assessed are paying in very real dollars.
She implored the Board to please look at the time line so that the tax roll can be revised by
February 2007.

Mayor Marvin said we are working every day on this issue. When she talked to people
around the county they were impressed how fast we are moving. She said we are moving as fast
as we can. We want to do it correctly.

Thomas Wolff said that in case people didn’t know, the previous speaker was Megan
McKinley, the past President of the Board of Education.

Mr. Wolff thanked Mayor Marvin and the Village administration for their increased
communication with the residents of the Village, and for putting the Board minutes on the
Village’s web site.

Mr. Wolff said he thought he heard something about a January 1* deadline for filing for a
veteran’s exemption. He said it was his recollection that this didn’t have to be renewed.
Mr. lagallo explained about the different veteran’s exemptions. He said that in most cases a
veteran’s exemption doesn’t have to be renewed but there is a form of veterans exemption that
does have to be renewed.

Mr. Wolff asked what the total of the settlements was as far as refunds in assessed value
that were approved this evening for the small claims settlements.

Steve Howard, Homesdale Road, said we certainly had a healthy discussion, and he
thought the participation of the Mayor and Trustees is to be commended. He said it is obvious
that there is a lot of time and effort being put into the assessment issue. He said it’s complex and
will affect the community in a lot of different ways. He said obviously people are concerned
about the timing. He said he personally hoped and supported Trustee Bellitto’s comments that a
2007 tax roll adjustment is an objective that we should all be working for. He said he would like
to see the impact study completed and a contract awarded to do a revaluation no later than
April 1* or at the April Board meeting. He said that by March 1* the Board should vote for a
revaluation to move ahead.

Mr. Howard suggested that the Board involve some citizens to help in the public
information process, and as they proceed to select a firm as a sounding board to the Board of



